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          2                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: We're trying to

          3  start on time. Welcome to this meeting of the City

          4  Council Finance Committee. My name is David Weprin,

          5  and I chair the Committee.

          6                 Today we are conducting hearings on

          7  two pieces of legislation. The first piece, Intro.

          8  No. 669, is a proposal that would suspend the

          9  activation of parking meters on Sunday. Under

         10  current law, City residents are required to pay when

         11  parking at a meter on Sundays.

         12                 Many City residents have complained

         13  that such law commonly referred to, or has been

         14  referred to as "Pay to Pray," disturbs religious

         15  services by requiring worshippers to interrupt

         16  church services in order to put money in the meter.

         17                 The second piece of legislation,

         18  Intro. No. 668, would re-extend the moratorium on

         19  awning violations.

         20                 In the summer of 2002, as a result of

         21  the enforcement initiative, the City issued numerous

         22  violations to small business owners and demanded the

         23  correction or removal of many citywide awnings.

         24                 Many of these awnings had existed in

         25  the current conditions for a decade, and business
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          2  owners unaware of the existing regulations were

          3  suddenly faced with large fines.

          4                 These regulations, which were totally

          5  out of date, dating back to 1961, even required,

          6  prohibited the placing of a phone number of a

          7  particular business on the awning, which of course

          8  was unconscionable and over 90 percent of the

          9  awnings in the City of New York were not in

         10  compliance with this legislation.

         11                 I'm sorry to say that the Department

         12  of City Planning has really dragged their feet on

         13  this issue. It has taken two moratoriums, one six

         14  month, one of two years, and now we're enacting the

         15  third moratorium after two and a half years of

         16  inaction to satisfaction of all parties by the

         17  Department of City Planning. So, I'm going to urge

         18  them publicly to get together with the sponsors of

         19  the legislation, Council Member Monserrate, myself,

         20  to resolve working on these regulations, because

         21  it's really unfair to penalize small business

         22  owners, not knowing what the state of these

         23  regulations are.

         24                 This current legislation would

         25  establish an additional moratorium, running from
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          2  July 14th, 2005 through January 14th, 2006, to

          3  provide business owners some additional time to

          4  comply with the regulations and provide financial

          5  relief to those hit with such large fines.

          6                 In addition to these two items, this

          7  Committee has received its first budget modification

          8  for the Fiscal 2006 budget, MN 1, an expense

          9  modification, and an additional capital

         10  modification.

         11                 These house-cleaning measures are

         12  intended to move funding into the appropriate

         13  agencies. They are revenue neutral.

         14                 Before concluding today's hearing,

         15  this Committee will also be considering a partial

         16  tax exemption for a Section 202 supportive housing

         17  project for the elderly in Council Member Recchia's

         18  district.

         19                 Let me introduce the members that are

         20  here. We have Council Member Mike McMahon from

         21  Staten Island, Council Member Margarita Lopez from

         22  Manhattan, Council Member Vincent Gentile from

         23  Brooklyn, Majority Leader Council Member Joel Rivera

         24  from the Bronx, and Council Member Hiram Monserrate,

         25  who is the prime sponsor of the parking meter bill,
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          2  and we have our counsel to the Finance Committee,

          3  Jim Caras.

          4                 The first witness is Commissioner

          5  Iris Weinshall, of the New York City Department of

          6  Transportation.

          7                 Why don't you go up together.

          8  Commissioner Walsh is a regular at the Finance

          9  Committee. It's always a pleasure to have him and we

         10  work very closely with him.

         11                 And if you could also identify the

         12  Deputy Commissioner, as well.

         13                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Okay, the

         14  Deputy Commissioner to my right is Michael

         15  Permeggia. He's the Deputy Commissioner for Traffic

         16  of the Department of Transportation.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay. We've also

         18  been joined by Council Member Robert Jackson from

         19  Manhattan.

         20                 Commissioner Walsh.

         21                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Thank you very

         22  much. Good morning, Mr. Chairman, and members of the

         23  Finance Committee. I'm Rob Walsh. I'm the

         24  Commissioner of the Department of Small Business

         25  Services, and I want to thank you for giving me this
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          2  opportunity today to testify on Intro. 669 on the

          3  issue of Sunday parking meters.

          4                 I'm joined by Commissioner Weinshall,

          5  staff of SBS, and I'm sure there will be a number of

          6  people from community-based organizations here to

          7  talk about the issue from the perspective of City

          8  small businesses.

          9                 As Commissioner of the City's

         10  Department of Small Business Services, my staff and

         11  I interact with small businesses every day. In fact,

         12  I was with the Majority Leader yesterday up at

         13  Fordham Road as we kicked off yet another Business

         14  Improvement District.

         15                 Small businesses are the lifeblood of

         16  our City, the City's more than 300 neighborhoods,

         17  they number more than 200,000 throughout the five

         18  boroughs, and I think we all could agree that they

         19  are the backbone of the economy. They mean more to

         20  neighborhoods than one can possibly articulate.

         21                 And during my tenure as Commissioner,

         22  I've witnessed a unique and creative entrepreneurial

         23  spirit that's taken place in this City, small

         24  businesses lifting neighborhoods throughout our five

         25  boroughs.
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          2                 Creativity comes in many forms, from

          3  sidewalk cafes to boutique clothing stores, to food

          4  markets and community bookstores. This kind of

          5  entrepreneurial spirit is the new face of Main

          6  Street New York City. It has driven crime down. It

          7  has brought shoppers back to previously depressed

          8  retail areas.

          9                 An example that comes to mind, and

         10  maybe just because I live right there, is Brooklyn

         11  Smith Street. I see firsthand every Sunday, when the

         12  shops, many of the restaurants, open their doors for

         13  brunch and people flock to the area. Some come by

         14  foot, some come by subway, and, yes, some come by

         15  car from other neighborhoods.

         16                 And over the past years, Smith Street

         17  has undergone an incredible renaissance. Today there

         18  are easily more than three dozen restaurants between

         19  Atlantic Avenues and President Streets, where I

         20  live, mixed in with everything from clothing stores

         21  to antique shops to home furnishing boutiques.

         22                 This is a far cry from Smith Street's

         23  days when it was dotted with vacancies.

         24                 I think the credit goes to the small

         25  businesses that took the risk and made the area a
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          2  destination point that it is today.

          3                 Small businesses, as we all know,

          4  don't have it easy, and survival is never

          5  guaranteed. In fact, many of them fail. Many small

          6  businesses and their owners are overworked, and they

          7  work around the clock, including weekends.

          8                 In fact, Saturday and Sunday are two

          9  of the most important days of the week for many

         10  small businesses, and I would particularly stress

         11  that. With the small boutiques and the restaurants

         12  Saturday and Sunday are their key days. This is when

         13  they pay the bills, quite frankly. And the business

         14  that comes in Sunday is so critical to the lifeblood

         15  of their businesses. This is when families, quite

         16  frankly, have extra time. They're off from work and

         17  they're walking, they're strolling the streets, and

         18  this could mean the difference between success and

         19  failure, whether or not they have access to parking

         20  for people and their customers to come in.

         21                 And one of the reasons stores on

         22  Smith Street have done well is because of Sunday

         23  parking meters.

         24                 I'm convinced of that. As

         25  Commissioner Weinshall will stress, meters ensure a
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          2  regular turnover, so ample spots are available for

          3  customers. Without meters, local residents are

          4  likely to use up the spaces from Saturday night

          5  through Monday morning, leaving no room, no room for

          6  the Sunday clientele.

          7                 Think of the father that takes his

          8  kids out for ice cream, or family going out for

          9  brunch after church, or someone who wants to run a

         10  quick errand to pick up milk from the deli or get

         11  their haircut at a favorite salon. Surely, New York

         12  City is known for its commuters and pedestrians, but

         13  these are all situations in which people are known

         14  to drive, especially when we think of our Main

         15  Street corridors throughout the five boroughs.

         16                 And an interesting point here is we

         17  were talking about this yesterday. I was talking to

         18  the Majority Leader. Every single one of the

         19  Business Improvement Districts that we have created

         20  in the last three, four years, have all been outside

         21  of Manhattan. They have all been in areas where we

         22  are seeing the main streets blossom once again.

         23                 When people cannot find a place to

         24  park, it's an obstacle, not just for the person

         25  driving but for the small businesses who lose out on
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          2  a customer.

          3                 If you're driving to explore a new

          4  neighborhood, perhaps one you've heard of, and

          5  you've heard of a few new stores and restaurants you

          6  would like to check out, and you can't find a spot,

          7  you're probably going to be discouraged and go home,

          8  and in some cases you're not coming back.

          9                 Again, small businesses have enough

         10  obstacles to overcome. It's our job, it's our job to

         11  do everything in our power to clear the obstacles

         12  the best we can.

         13                 We need to continue to encourage the

         14  entrepreneurial spirit that has been unleased in

         15  neighborhoods from Fordham Road to downtown

         16  Flushing, from Park Slope to West Brighton in Staten

         17  Island.

         18                 The City and its main street shopping

         19  districts have come a long, long way in the last

         20  decade and we must continue this trend.

         21                 I encourage all of you to go out,

         22  talk to some of the small business owners in each of

         23  your districts, get a pulse on this issue. I have a

         24  good idea of what they'll say.

         25                 Just like what I learned when I ran
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          2  the Business Improvement District on 14th Street in

          3  Union Square, stores depend on Sunday meters for

          4  healthy days of businesses. Having Sunday meters on

          5  14th Street is pivotal in attracting a healthy

          6  retail mix that helped revitalize the neighborhood.

          7  And I would particularly point out the smaller shops

          8  along the Eastern corridor of 14th Street where it

          9  was necessary. The concerns of businesses then are

         10  no different than they are today.

         11                 I leave you with a proposal. I would

         12  be happy to volunteer to bring together the

         13  community-based organizations, the local development

         14  corporations, the small business owners, to come

         15  together so you could understand and get a sense of

         16  what their needs are on, particularly on Sunday, as

         17  they continue to build the retail corridors, as they

         18  continue to build the main streets of our New York

         19  City, and so we also could hear their voices loud

         20  and clear.

         21                 I want to thank you very much for

         22  this opportunity to share my thoughts.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you,

         24  Commissioner.

         25                 Commissioner Weinshall.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Good morning,

          3  Chairman Weprin and members of the Finance

          4  Committee. Thank you for inviting me here today to

          5  testify on Intro. 669 which would suspend the

          6  activation of parking meters on Sundays.

          7                 As you know, DOT testified on this

          8  very issue back in February when its predecessor

          9  bill was referred to the Transportation Committee.

         10  And the issue was also discussed at length at the

         11  agency's March 18th budget hearing before this

         12  Committee.

         13                 I would like to state from the onset

         14  that our position in opposition to this bill has not

         15  changed. We think this is a harmful bill that will

         16  negatively impact local merchants, and motorists

         17  throughout the five boroughs.

         18                 I find it very disconcerting that

         19  this bill, unlike its three predecessor bills would

         20  be referred to the Finance Committee, instead of the

         21  Transportation Committee.

         22                 It seems as though the Council fails

         23  to understand that meters serve a transportation

         24  purpose.

         25                 Certainly the revenue is relevant,
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          2  losing $7 million annually if this bill were passed

          3  is an important consideration. But primarily the

          4  agency's concern is the impact meters have on those

          5  who drive and park in the City. Meters are, in fact,

          6  a valuable traffic management tool, which we have at

          7  our disposal to effectively manage the limited

          8  number of curb spaces around the City.

          9                 The purpose of meters, regardless of

         10  which day they're in effect, is to turn over parking

         11  spaces so that more customers and other individuals

         12  can gain access for a particular parking spot in a

         13  busy commercial area, helping the motorists, the

         14  businesses and other entities in the area enhancing

         15  commercial activity.

         16                 The locations around the City's

         17  designated for Sunday meter activation are areas

         18  that have long established commercial strips, where

         19  stores have been open for business on Sundays many

         20  years.

         21                 While DOT expanded the Sunday meter

         22  program over the past three years, many Sunday

         23  meters had been in effect for well over a decade.

         24                 As a result of having meters in

         25  effect on Sunday, curb spaces can turn over

                                                            16

          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2  providing maximum parking opportunity to most

          3  motorists.

          4                 This is especially significant given

          5  the limited amount of parking spaces available in

          6  the City.

          7                 An additional major benefit of this

          8  program is that because of increased turnover,

          9  indices of such serious parking violations, as

         10  double parking, parking in bus stops, and in front

         11  of fire hydrants is decreased, and accordingly,

         12  public safety is enhanced.

         13                 And because spaces are now available

         14  to shoppers, vehicular circulation and traffic

         15  congestion is decreased, as motorists are not forced

         16  to drive around looking for spaces.

         17                 It continues to baffle me that some

         18  Council members refuse to acknowledge the purpose of

         19  the meters. One anti-meter member even quoted in the

         20  newspaper as saying, "people want to be able to

         21  visit family members in hospitals or go out to the

         22  restaurants after Church on Sundays" and you know,

         23  that's correct, but this is exactly why the

         24  regulations are important. It provides opportunities

         25  for people to find parking to do these very
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          2  activities.

          3                 Another sponsor of this bill had a

          4  different idea a few weeks ago. To legalize double

          5  parking. No sooner had he introduced his bill when

          6  he sent us a letter complaining about double parking

          7  in his district.

          8                 So, what's going to happen here? This

          9  Council is going to pass this bill, and this agency

         10  is going to get letters and complaints from your

         11  constituents, and then after a few months we'll

         12  start hearing from you asking us to reinstate Sunday

         13  parking meters.

         14                 Well, I have to tell you, you can't

         15  have it both ways.

         16                 Recently DOT conducted a Sunday

         17  survey of 11 metered areas in Brooklyn, the Bronx

         18  and Queens, comprising 6,000 meters to ascertain

         19  space occupancy.

         20                 The results of this survey indicate

         21  that over 80 percent of these spaces, over 5,000

         22  meters were occupied.

         23                 Additionally, of the 4,500 retail

         24  establishments located in these areas, 3,000 or 66

         25  percent were open for business.
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          2                 In this context, it is a fact that

          3  almost seven out of every ten stores in these areas

          4  are actively engaged in business on Sundays, and

          5  therefore, the meters serve as an effective tool to

          6  manage the curb space at these locations.

          7                 Frankly, this is not surprising to

          8  us. We chose these locations precisely because we

          9  knew there was a demand on Sundays. In fact, it's

         10  important to note that most of the City continues to

         11  have no Sunday regulations. Less than 50 percent of

         12  our meters operate all seven days.

         13                 The Sunday meter rule is a tool we

         14  only use where it is appropriate.

         15                 For the better our City has changed

         16  over the years. From 1990 to 2000, we've seen an

         17  increase of over 20,000 more cars in the City.

         18  Additionally, many businesses, including banks and

         19  liquor stores, who were at one time traditionally

         20  closed on Sundays, are now open to serve their

         21  customers.

         22                 There are thriving commercial hubs

         23  throughout all the boroughs, many of which thrive

         24  seven days a week.

         25                 Not to mention Manhattan's theatre
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          2  district where this bill would create chaos on

          3  Sundays, force many theatre-goers into garages which

          4  charge much higher rates.

          5                 As I noted earlier, in 2002 we

          6  expanded our Sunday marking meter program as a way

          7  to encourage the turnover of curb space in

          8  commercial areas.

          9                 Interestingly enough, until the

         10  hearing six months ago, we had received very few

         11  complaints about our Sunday meter regulations.

         12  Despite the fact they had been in place for a few

         13  years.

         14                 And even after a great deal of

         15  attention was placed on the Sunday meter program

         16  over this passed winter, surprisingly enough, we

         17  continue to receive only a small number of

         18  complaints.

         19                 In fact, despite my offer to evaluate

         20  turning one-hour regulations near houses of worship

         21  into two-hour regulations, we only received six

         22  requests over the past six months.

         23                 In response, we've examined or are

         24  examining each location on a case-by-case basis and

         25  where warranted, we are changing the regulations.
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          2                 To date, two of the seven requests

          3  have been granted where we've changed or are in the

          4  process of changing the meters from a seven-day to a

          5  six-day operation due to low occupancy and lack of

          6  demand for the turnover of spaces in these

          7  particular locations.

          8                 Additionally, one request is pending

          9  and in the other three cases we found that there was

         10  ample non-metered parking spaces available or that

         11  two-hour meters already existed in close proximity

         12  to the house of worship.

         13                 In total, since January of 2003,

         14  we've received 18 requests pertaining to houses of

         15  worship and we've accommodated nine of these by

         16  changing one-hour regulations to two-hour

         17  regulations, or eliminating the Sunday regulation

         18  all together.

         19                 And we're happy to continue to offer

         20  to assess any location in the City for such a

         21  change. But it's remarkable how few instances we've

         22  been asked to change the regulations, and more

         23  important, how few complaints we have received.

         24                 In addition, I'd like to point out

         25  that since the agency's budget hearing before this
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          2  Committee in March, we've heard from only one of the

          3  22 members of this Committee, but now, surprisingly,

          4  this Committee has expressed a renewed interest in

          5  this -- a renewed interest in this issue.

          6                 So, where does that leave us?

          7                 The Council wants to eliminate $7

          8  million in revenue.

          9                 The Council wants to make it more

         10  difficult for New Yorkers to find parking.

         11                 The Council wants to put both

         12  pedestrians and motorists at risk.

         13                 The Council wants to circumvent its

         14  own Transportation Committee on a transportation

         15  matter.

         16                 But the Council does have an issue

         17  made to order for a few headlines.

         18                 So, I would like to close my

         19  testimony, Mr. Chairman, with a question for you and

         20  your colleagues. Could it be that the election year

         21  calendar is impacting the Council's decision to

         22  bring this issue to the forefront?

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: We've been joined

         25  by a number of Council Members since the last round
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          2  of introductions.

          3                 We have Council Member Tony Avella

          4  from Queens, Council Member John Liu from Queens,

          5  Council Member Christine Quinn from Manhattan,

          6  Council Member Helen Sears from Queens, Council

          7  Member Erik Martin Dilan from Brooklyn, Council

          8  Member Oliver Koppell from the Bronx, Council Member

          9  Madeline Provenzano from the Bronx, Council Member

         10  Dennis Gallagher from Queens, Council Member

         11  Minority Leader Jim Oddo from Staten Island, Council

         12  Member Bill DeBlasio from Brooklyn, and Council

         13  Member Domenic Recchia from Brooklyn.

         14                 I just want to state that this

         15  originally was not intended to be a public hearing.

         16  We had a full public hearing on the issue on

         17  February 17th, and just in response to Commissioner

         18  Weinshall's implication or statement about Finance

         19  considering this rather than Transportation, I want

         20  to make a notation that Transportation does not meet

         21  over the summer, and if there's any question that

         22  this bill is circumventing any process or does not

         23  have public support, I just would like to note for

         24  the record that 42 members out of 51 members of the

         25  City Council are co-sponsors of this legislation,
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          2  plus the Public Advocate.

          3                 So, there is no question beyond a

          4  reasonable doubt that this Council has significant

          5  support for this bill. And if we were not to take it

          6  up, we could certainly be accused of holding back 42

          7  out of 51 members' wishes to pass this legislation.

          8                 I did not invite members to testify.

          9  We had extensive testimony in favor of this

         10  legislation back in February, on February 17th. I

         11  did, as a courtesy to Commissioner Weinshall, allow

         12  her to testify, and, of course, I have high regard

         13  for Commissioner Walsh, so I certainly would never

         14  refuse him the opportunity to testify before this

         15  Committee.

         16                 I do see a request, though, from

         17  Howard Feuer, who is District Manager of Brooklyn

         18  Community Board 11. I will allow him to testify for

         19  three minutes briefly if he could before we continue

         20  with the question and answers. But I really didn't

         21  invite members of the public to testify for this,

         22  otherwise we would have had extensive testimony in

         23  favor of the legislation.

         24                 But is Mr. Feuer here? Is he in the

         25  audience? He's not here?
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          2                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: He didn't

          3  respond.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay, if he

          5  didn't respond, we're going to move on.

          6                 Okay, we have a number of members

          7  that have questions, but I'm going to allow the

          8  prime sponsor of this bill, Council Member

          9  Monserrate, to make a statement before we get into

         10  questions.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Thank you

         12  very much, Mr. Chair. And thank you to all my

         13  colleagues, who so diligently worked with us here in

         14  this institution to put this very important piece of

         15  legislation forward.

         16                 Let me say that from the onset that

         17  when this bill was introduced, and I want to also

         18  acknowledge my colleague Vinnie Gentile, who early

         19  on was a supporter and understood the impact it had

         20  on his district and Brooklyn, mine in Queens, and

         21  Larry Seabrook from the Bronx, and all my colleagues

         22  from Manhattan and Staten Island, that this is a

         23  prudent measure that we as a body are taking for

         24  several reasons.

         25                 First and foremost, there are
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          2  hundreds of thousands of worshippers that Sunday are

          3  impacted by the current regulations, and they have

          4  made their complaints.

          5                 There are also hundreds of thousands

          6  of New Yorkers who live in the mixed-use zones where

          7  there are commercial and residential establishments,

          8  and on Sunday morning, perhaps when they wanted to

          9  take an hour or two off and wake up a little later,

         10  they're on their way to feed a meter at 9:00 a.m. on

         11  a Sunday. Or we can talk to the shoppers at Queens

         12  Center Mall, who have gotten summonsed for perhaps

         13  not feeding the meter in time while they're shopping

         14  on a Sunday at 9:00 or 10:00 at night, since those

         15  regulations are in place til 10:00 on a Sunday.

         16                 Perhaps we should look at the revenue

         17  that we lose in Long Island and other suburbs when

         18  New Yorkers go to shop there because of the

         19  summonses that they're subjected to.

         20                 Let me say that originally I did not

         21  plan to make a statement at the Committee. I was

         22  going to reserve my remarks for the full body. But

         23  in light of the testimony that we heard today, I

         24  believe a response by me is demanded.

         25                 The issue of a few headlines is
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          2  really insulting. It's really insulting to all of us

          3  as a body.

          4                 We have all run for office, many of

          5  us at least twice, before this election cycle. This

          6  has zero to do with running in election, and more to

          7  do with being the voice of the people that we

          8  represent, the 8 million New Yorkers that contact

          9  the 51 Council offices, and there are some Council

         10  members who probably will not support this bill, but

         11  the overwhelming majority of this body is in support

         12  of this bill.

         13                 And for anyone to testify here that

         14  this body or any of our members are doing this for

         15  mere headlines is insulting and wrong and

         16  disrespectful to this institution.

         17                 Furthermore, let me say on page five,

         18  your testimony that states the Council wants to put

         19  both pedestrians and motorists at risk is

         20  irresponsible and insulting, and is unacceptable. As

         21  a professional it is unacceptable. We don't expect

         22  our agencies to come into this body and present this

         23  type of testimony.

         24                 This body is very clear where we

         25  stand on public safety for our citizens and for our
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          2  pedestrians, and for anyone to come here, and in

          3  particular, the Commission of a major agency in this

          4  City, to denigrate this body, is insulting and is

          5  unacceptable.

          6                 I just want to say that to all of us

          7  here as a body. We also have a right to stand up for

          8  this institution and we have the political will to

          9  stand up in the interest and in defense of New

         10  Yorkers and we are answering their call, then that

         11  also must be respected by the Commissioners and by

         12  the very Mayor himself.

         13                 Thank you very much.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you.

         15                 I'm also going to call upon the

         16  co-prime sponsor of this legislation, Council Member

         17  Vincent Gentile, for a statement.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Thank you,

         19  Mr. Chairman.

         20                 And I echo those words of the

         21  co-prime sponsor Hiram Monserrate. And I will just

         22  take a minute or two to just put things on the

         23  record, in light of what has already been on the

         24  record, and indicate, as Councilman Monserrate had

         25  said, that this has been not a recent effort, it's
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          2  been an effort of two years. Two years almost to the

          3  date I have correspondence with the DOT about the

          4  institution of Sunday parking meters in July of

          5  2003. So, any suggestion that it's a creation of

          6  recent doing is just not true.

          7                 And let me just indicate to you that

          8  my office and my files are replete, replete with

          9  letters of support and letters saying we want to see

         10  this done, and complaints about it having been

         11  instituted.

         12                 Community Board 10 in Bayridge, the

         13  Chairman of that Board, saying that the interruption

         14  faced by worshippers on Sunday is simply not fair.

         15  The president of a local church council saying

         16  parishioners must come prepared with quarters, watch

         17  the clock, or risk getting a ticket.

         18                 Letter from State Senator Martin

         19  Golden, who says that he takes the opportunity to

         20  inform this constituent that he has expressed his

         21  concerns related to Sunday parking meters in our

         22  community to the Mayor of the City of New York.

         23                 The Republican Candidate for City

         24  Council in Bayridge comes out with a headline saying

         25  "No Parking Meters on Sunday."
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          2                 The Fifth Avenue Board of Trade, the

          3  Officers, Directors and members of Fifth Avenue

          4  Board of Trade unanimously support your legislation

          5  to end Sunday meter parking and that is a small

          6  business group.

          7                 Also, the president of Fort Hamilton

          8  Parkway Board of Trade, Josephine Moriello, a letter

          9  of support.

         10                 President of the 13th Avenue

         11  Merchants Association in Bensonhurst and Dyker

         12  Heights, Anthony Decriecenzo, another letter of

         13  support.

         14                 An op ed piece by Reverend Mateo J.

         15  Rizzo, a Catholic Priest from Bensonhurst, saying

         16  leave parking meters free on Sunday. That was in the

         17  New York Daily News. And then just streams and

         18  streams of e-mails from people who are saying to us,

         19  thank you, thank you, thank you, I support your

         20  efforts to end this thoughtless practice of meter

         21  collections on Sunday. Thank you for taking the

         22  right steps toward bettering the New York Quality of

         23  Life. Some politicians just think of nickel and

         24  diming us, you all remember that Sunday still means

         25  something to us, and this is a New Yorker from
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          2  Howard Beach sending to us.

          3                 And I just might end, Mr. Chairman,

          4  and also we have comments from the President of the

          5  Bayridge Real Estate Board who questioned

          6  Commissioner Weinshall at a local forum in Dyker

          7  Heights.

          8                 These are pictures of local small

          9  businesses in my area that on Sunday afternoon at

         10  2:30 the gates are shuttered. There are open parking

         11  spots. All these parking spots are open. All these

         12  meters are active, and the gates are shut. The

         13  shuttered parking meters are active. Why is it that

         14  in a mixed community like this, in a mixed

         15  commercial strip that we need Sunday parking meters?

         16                 I just put that on the record,

         17  because I think the benefits of the bill are well

         18  versed, Mr. Chairman.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you,

         20  Council Member.

         21                 Council Member Provenzano.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: I'm almost

         23  tempted to pass because my two colleagues have

         24  spoken so eloquently, but I would like to remind the

         25  Commissioner that before this bill ever saw the

                                                            31

          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2  light of day, I had a problem in my district at St.

          3  Benedicts. So, when Hiram came to me today like

          4  this, are you with us, and I think he was like this,

          5  because, you know, everybody knows me as the Mayor's

          6  guy, I said, yeah. I said yeah, I probably credit

          7  myself with starting a lot of this bruhaha because

          8  it was my district, probably now if this bill is

          9  two-years-old, it was probably three years ago, that

         10  started a whole big uproar about St. Benedicts.

         11                 So, yeah, I do support this. And I am

         12  really appalled at the comments that were made by

         13  the Commissioner. Of course I don't fit into that

         14  category because I am term limited and I'm not

         15  running again, and as I said before, and as I said

         16  to Hiram when he asked me, and I think this applies

         17  to most of my colleagues, when I'm asked to vote on

         18  something, I first vote my conscience and then my

         19  constituency. And that is my only reason for

         20  supporting this bill, and I am happy to see that

         21  there are so many folks on it. And, again, I am just

         22  sitting here astounded that those comments were

         23  made, and am totally insulted. Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Council Member,

         25  would you like us to add you to the bill?
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Yes.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay, 43

          4  sponsors.

          5                 Council Member Avella.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: You are about

          7  to make it 42 sponsors.

          8                 For the record, I had asked a couple

          9  of days ago that my name be removed from this bill.

         10  I see it's still on there. I see it's just an

         11  administrative problem.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Back to 42.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: I would like

         14  my name removed from the bill.

         15                 I have a couple of questions, and,

         16  one, I guess let me direct to the Chair.

         17                 Am I correct in assuming that the $7

         18  million that is the revenue we would have gotten

         19  from Sunday parking meters, was included in the

         20  budget? And if we in effect do not pass this

         21  legislation, we will not have that 7 million as part

         22  of the revenue for this Fiscal Year, that we would

         23  then in effect have to make some cuts right down the

         24  line?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: That's not
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          2  totally accurate, Council member, because --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Well, that's

          4  why I'm asking you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Because we're

          6  adopting it in the middle of a fiscal year. By the

          7  time it goes into effect, it will be, part of the

          8  fiscal year will be, I would say the first quarter

          9  will be gone.

         10                 We started July 1st, until it's

         11  passed, the rumor is the Mayor may veto it, it may

         12  be overridden, you're probably talking, you know,

         13  September at the earliest it would go into effect,

         14  which would probably mean the first three months.

         15  So, it would be nine months, so it would be 7

         16  million pro-rated over a year.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: You answered

         18  my question affirmatively in terms of the fact that

         19  you've already allocated this money. And if you

         20  don't follow through for the entire fiscal year,

         21  there's going to be some cut somewhere down the line

         22  that we will have to make.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: No, no --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: What that

         25  amount of money is is not known at this point.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Not necessarily.

          3  Because it looks like the revenue that was projected

          4  earlier was below what's actually come in.

          5                 So, you know, it's not a complete

          6  hundred percent accurate science because we're

          7  estimating revenues, but it looks like we've more

          8  than made up for the revenue in other places.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Okay.

         10                 I fully believe that Council Member

         11  Monserrate and Gentile believe they're doing the

         12  right thing in this legislation. And I'm sure

         13  they've gotten concerns from parishioners, from

         14  their residents, but, you know, sometimes I look at

         15  legislation with common sense. And if, in fact, this

         16  bill is designed to address the issue of

         17  parishioners going to their house of worship, and

         18  having to go outside and put money in the meter

         19  because that's where they had to park, they're going

         20  to find a problem, in my opinion, if this bill goes

         21  into effect, because there's going to be no parking

         22  spots. Because what's going to happen, this is my

         23  opinion, you can disagree with it, is Friday

         24  evening, when those meters are no longer in effect

         25  and you don't have to feed the meter, you're going
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          2  to have local residents park in that spot and not

          3  move their car til Monday morning. You are not going

          4  to have those parking spots.

          5                 Those parishioners who legitimately

          6  are concerned about the meters are not going to have

          7  a parking spot. They're going to be walking further

          8  to the house of worship.

          9                 And the one thing I do agree with the

         10  Commissioner, Commissioner Weinshall's testimony is,

         11  we are going to be getting phone calls months from

         12  now basically to say, you know what? I can't park

         13  next to my house of worship, I can't frequent my mom

         14  and pop shopping center, because there are people

         15  parking all weekend now at those meters.

         16                 This is going to be a real issue

         17  that's common sense. Anybody who lives in those

         18  districts knows that is going to happen.

         19                 I also happen to believe that this is

         20  probably not good legislation in the fact of making

         21  a blanket statement for the entire City. It is

         22  probably something that should be done on a

         23  case-by-case basis, and left to the agency.

         24                 So, with all due respect to the

         25  sponsors of this bill, I just cannot support it for
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          2  those reasons.

          3                 I do know that Councilman Monserrate

          4  and Gentile in their mind, are doing the right thing

          5  for their constituents in the City. I just happen to

          6  disagree on this issue.

          7                 Thank you, Mr. Chair, for allowing me

          8  to speak on this item.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you.

         10                 Council Member Sears.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you, Mr.

         12  Chair.

         13                 I have two questions, one for

         14  Commissioner Walsh and one for Weinshall, but I do

         15  want to say first that I'm in a very odd position

         16  because I have great respect for my colleagues, and

         17  42 is a very impressive number, but I do not support

         18  the bill, and I'll explain why after I ask a couple

         19  of questions. But in no way should my non-support

         20  for this bill diminish the importance and respect

         21  that I have for my colleagues. I'm doing what I

         22  believe is the right thing for my district, but

         23  above all, I believe for the City of New York.

         24                 And my first question is, for the

         25  BIDs, Commissioner Walsh, there are new BIDs that
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          2  have been formed, there's one in Flushing, starting,

          3  I believe we voted on it and elsewhere, my question

          4  to you is: In the process, in the application, has

          5  there ever come up the question of getting the

          6  Sunday meters out of effect, that would effect the

          7  passage or the approval of those BIDs?

          8                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: I don't recall it

          9  ever coming up with regard to the creation of a

         10  Business Improvement District.

         11                 You know, what I can tell you, as

         12  someone who ran a Business Improvement District, if

         13  you took away the metered parking, in the district

         14  that I ran on 14th Street, and I would particularly

         15  say East 14th Street where you have many of the

         16  stores under 1,000 square feet, you will -- it will

         17  have a detrimental effect on their livelihood. Most

         18  of them are open on Sundays. Today I had an early

         19  eye doctor appointment on Montague Street in

         20  Brooklyn, and I went up and down the street.  Quite

         21  frankly, I had to take a look a little closer on the

         22  Sunday meter parker.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Commissioner

         24  Weinshall didn't give you a pass?

         25                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: No pass. And you
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          2  know, you take a look at the mix, and I think

          3  Councilman Avella said it the right way here, is one

          4  glove simply doesn't fit all. And many of the

          5  districts, and many of the main streets, if you

          6  will, that have seen a rebirth and a renaissance in

          7  this City, have places that cater to the Sunday

          8  shopper. They'll go to the bookstore, they'll go to

          9  the coffee shop, they'll go to the boutique, they'll

         10  go to the music store, and I find myself on Sundays

         11  with my kids often going to places where I could,

         12  you know, where I could shop and park. And I think

         13  that's critical. And I think what I'm saying is I

         14  would like to work with this body, and reach out to

         15  the Business Improvement Districts, the Merchants

         16  Associations and Local Development Corporations so

         17  we could fit the regulations according to the

         18  character of the various neighborhoods.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you.

         20                 And Commissioner Weinshall, since

         21  these are only in effect for two years, and it may

         22  not be something you can answer now, but before I

         23  ask that question I actually should say that all of

         24  our districts are very unique and they vary, and

         25  there probably is no district that is as varied as
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          2  mine with commercial use, mixed use, residential,

          3  single-family homes, I mean I could go on. It is the

          4  most unique in terms of housing profile and

          5  commercial profile. We have a Business Improvement

          6  District, we have merchants associations, and we are

          7  in the process, hopefully, of doing another BID, if

          8  not that, an LDC.

          9                 So, I am very much aware of how areas

         10  have to be treated separately, except that when

         11  legislation is passed, it doesn't, I don't believe,

         12  exclude. So, when this legislation is passed, I

         13  believe it's for five boroughs; does that involve

         14  Manhattan as well?

         15                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: It's all five

         16  boroughs.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Okay. So, we

         18  can't pick and choose legislation. Prior to the

         19  Sunday parking, particularly in areas where you have

         20  this mixed use, residential and commercial, have the

         21  Sunday meters helped in those areas where private

         22  homes now can get out of the driveways because of

         23  the parking, because there were cars in front of

         24  meters all day long, residents parked, and I agree

         25  with my colleague and my concern is that there will
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          2  be no flow of traffic, there will be no emptying of

          3  meters, there will be no availability of meters.

          4                 We have seen this traffic move. We

          5  have seen people be able to go. And I can tell you

          6  from my district, there isn't one store that's got a

          7  gate down on a Sunday, throughout my district,

          8  throughout. They're the most thriving.

          9                 When the blue laws went out, and

         10  commercial areas developed, they are thriving.

         11  Absolutely thriving. And quite frankly, I don't know

         12  how any merchant, without having a global picture,

         13  can absolutely support, because there will be no

         14  availability for his customers.

         15                 As a matter of fact, with all due

         16  respect to merchants, they'll leave their cars there

         17  all day. Right now they have to go three blocks away

         18  to park. And certainly every area is so unique, I go

         19  to Forest Hills, I can go to Great Neck, I can go to

         20  the different areas to shop, as well as --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: We have no

         22  jurisdiction over Great Neck.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: No, I know, but

         24  I shop there, so it's good for you to know that.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Spend your money
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          2  in the City, Helen.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: And the fact

          4  is, is that they depend, not just on the

          5  communities, they depend on outside their

          6  communities to do the thriving that they're doing.

          7                 So, my question, to get back to that

          8  because I digressed, you know in your records, or by

          9  the volume of complaints, that before, and I know

         10  certainly in many community boards, the complaints

         11  that came on Sunday, because people could not get

         12  out of their driveways, that there were shoppers

         13  that were parking in their driveways because there

         14  were no meters available all day long, and I see the

         15  restaurants suffering.

         16                 I don't know how any restaurateur

         17  could believe that it will benefit his business,

         18  because if he is depending only on walk-bys, then

         19  they're not thriving businesses, and I know that

         20  every one in my district thrives, and they come from

         21  tristate areas to do it.

         22                 So, my question is that we, to you,

         23  before we went in we had all that double-parking and

         24  we had parking in driveways. Is there any

         25  indication, either from the complaints that had

                                                            42

          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2  been, that that was diminished?

          3                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Let me just

          4  say that we have had Sunday parking in effect for a

          5  decade, and in particular, the neighborhoods that we

          6  had originally targeted were neighborhoods like in

          7  your district, I know you're referring probably to

          8  Jackson Heights, we had targeted areas --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Elmhurst.

         10                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Yes. Brighton

         11  Beach, Avenue J, Avenue U --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Regal Park.

         13                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Right. Avenue

         14  J. I'm just talking about --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: I know. I just

         16  want you to know how expanse it is.

         17                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: And also, I

         18  want to say it was Citywide. Before 2002, the decade

         19  before that, we had 8,000 meters which were in

         20  effect on Sunday.

         21                 Clearly, you're still going to have

         22  people who are going to disobey the law. They are

         23  going to park in bus stops, they're going to park at

         24  people's driveways. But clearly, as a result of

         25  turning over these spots, we are affording people a
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          2  greater opportunity to find a legitimate parking

          3  spot, and that's what our surveys have shown, that

          4  those parking spots are turning over more

          5  frequently.

          6                 The other thing is, Mr. Chairman, I

          7  know that Councilman Gentile had showed a picture of

          8  a street in his district. I have seen that picture

          9  before. Let me just say that, again, for the record,

         10  in February we did a survey of a number of

         11  neighborhoods where we had enhanced Sunday parking

         12  meters. As a whole, let me just say again for the

         13  record, 66 percent of the stores are open in those

         14  neighborhoods that we did do surveys, and we found

         15  that the occupancy rate in those three boroughs that

         16  we did do the survey was 80 percent of the meters

         17  occupied.

         18                 The area that Mr. Gentile showed a

         19  picture of, which I have seen before, the percent of

         20  occupancy of the meters is 87 percent, and the

         21  percentage of stores open is 56 percent.

         22                 So, I guess on that particular

         23  stretch of area we have never said that 100 percent

         24  of the stores are open, nor have we said that 100

         25  percent of the meters are occupied.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay. Thank you

          3  for that clarification.

          4                 We have a number of members who want

          5  to ask questions. And, again --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: I just want to

          7  make another comment, if I may.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Let me finish.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Okay.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: And, again, we

         11  have other business to consider, including the

         12  moratorium bill and the two budget modifications,

         13  and the Land Use referral in Council Member

         14  Recchia's district. So, if you could please try to

         15  limit your questions to questions and not statements

         16  and then we can move on expeditiously.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Okay.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: We've been joined

         19  by Council Member Eric Gioia from Queens, Council

         20  Member Gale Brewer from Manhattan, Council Member

         21  Bill Perkins from Manhattan, Council Member Simcha

         22  Felder from Brooklyn.

         23                 The next questioner is Council --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: I just need to

         25  make a final statement, Mr. Chair.
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          2                 I need to say --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: If you can make

          4  it briefly.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Yes, very

          6  brief.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Briefly.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: What I need to

          9  say, and one of my big concerns, although it's all

         10  been expressed, is that it does not cover other

         11  religious institutions.

         12                 I have synagogues that have meters

         13  around the entire synagogue, except right in the

         14  front, there is no suggestion that those meters

         15  should not be in effect. I have a big issue with

         16  that. I really do. And I've stated that in the

         17  transportation meeting, and the Commissioner has

         18  heard me say that.

         19                 So, I think that in all fairness,

         20  when we talk about the religious institutions, I

         21  think we have to look at it, okay? And so I've had

         22  to make that comment.

         23                 Thank you for allowing me the time.

         24  Thank you, Commissioners.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you.
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          2                 Council Member Liu.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Thank you, Mr.

          4  Chairman.

          5                 As you know, I do chair the

          6  Transportation Committee, and this issue had come up

          7  before my Committee earlier this year. Parking

          8  meters serve a very simple purpose in our City. They

          9  ensure that there is turnover of scarce on-street

         10  parking in our City, in business areas where stores

         11  rely on people being able to pull up nearby their

         12  establishments and park for a relatively short

         13  period of time to patronize those businesses, to run

         14  errands, to conduct other business. There are no

         15  parking meters in purely residential areas. And

         16  parking meters are deactivated in commercial areas

         17  when the businesses are not open. Whether it be on

         18  Sundays in many parts of the City, or in certain

         19  parts of the City on Saturdays.

         20                 Parking meters are a very simple

         21  device. They assure a turnover of parking spaces.

         22  Taking away the ability of activating parking meters

         23  on Sundays will definitely hurt the businesses that

         24  are open on Sundays. We see more and more businesses

         25  in this City open on Sundays.
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          2                 In the end, this bill, my colleagues,

          3  and I hate to be part of a small minority here, but

          4  it's a lose/lose proposition. We're going to lose,

          5  because in a few months the people who need to

          6  attend their worship on Sundays will complain that

          7  they are no longer able to find the parking space.

          8                 It's a losing situation, because once

          9  this bill gets passed, in the next couple weeks

         10  we'll hear plenty of complaints from the people who

         11  pray on Saturdays and even on Fridays. It's not a

         12  fair bill, from that perspective, but in the end it

         13  does not allow, it does not achieve the purpose that

         14  many of the members here are trying to achieve.

         15                 So, this is the reason why the bill

         16  has not exiting the Transportation Committee.

         17  Because based on the testimony we've heard, both

         18  from the public, as well as from the professional

         19  city agencies involved, upon discussing this issue

         20  with members of the Transportation Committee who are

         21  at these hearings, and fully deliberating with our

         22  professionals and the Transportation Committee

         23  staff, this was not a good bill to proceed with.

         24                 Now, nonetheless, it appears it will

         25  pass out of the Council, and I know that we will
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          2  have to revisit this issue.

          3                 I do want to say that I am extremely

          4  disappointed to hear some of the comments coming

          5  from Commissioner Weinshall, because it demonstrates

          6  an utter disdain for this body, and it lends -- this

          7  kind of disdain simply leads credence to the many

          8  complaints that your Department, that we have

          9  received that your Department has not been

         10  responsive to Council Member requests that specific

         11  areas be reviewed. Hence, we had to hold the

         12  hearings on this bill.

         13                 The frustration has risen to the

         14  level where a great majority of this body finds

         15  itself at wits end, and now it appears that we are

         16  on the verge of passing what I consider ill-advised

         17  legislation.

         18                 So, I am certain that in a few months

         19  this body will have to revisit this issue, because

         20  we will find that the objectives that this

         21  legislation tries to achieve will not actually have

         22  been achieved.

         23                 And at that point, I hope that the

         24  Department and you, Commissioner, Weinshall, will

         25  embrace our feedback and our requests with more
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          2  enthusiasm, or at least the willingness to listen.

          3                 Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you,

          5  Council member.

          6                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Mr. Chairman,

          7  if I may just respond to the Councilman, because --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: No, no. This

          9  isn't a debate, Commissioner.

         10                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Well, you

         11  know, he said some things which I think were grossly

         12  inaccurate.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Commissioner,

         14  Commissioner you're out of order.

         15                 You're out of order, Commissioner.

         16                 Council Member DeBlasio.

         17                 Council Member Koppell.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Thank you

         19  very much, Mr. Chairman.

         20                 If you look at the bill, you'll

         21  notice my name is not on it. And that's because I

         22  did have some concerns, both on the revenue side and

         23  on the side of creating more mobility.

         24                 However, since the bill has been

         25  introduced, I can tell you that quite a number of my

                                                            50

          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2  constituents, and, you know, we all know that not

          3  that many people read about what's happening here,

          4  so when you hear from a number of constituents, you

          5  know that it's something that concerns them and

          6  motivated them. And they've come up to me and said,

          7  you know, pass that bill, we don't like those meters

          8  on Sunday.

          9                 Conversely, not a single store owner,

         10  and I have several mixed, as the Commissioner knows,

         11  mixed commercial residential areas, nobody has come

         12  up to me and said, you know, don't pass that bill.

         13                 Furthermore, as people here know,

         14  I've served in government for a very long time, and

         15  I never in 24 years in the State Legislature, had

         16  anybody come to me and say please give us Sunday

         17  parking meters. I cannot recall that ever happening

         18  in 23 years in the State Legislature.

         19                 Before they had Sunday parking in

         20  most areas. There is no question that there's a

         21  certain amount of benefit. There is some benefit to

         22  having the turnover. But the negative side of that

         23  is that people would like a respite from being

         24  constantly hassled on parking issues, including

         25  alternate side of the street parking, including
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          2  parking meters, having a day of rest, if you will,

          3  from this kind of hassling is important and I

          4  respect the issue of worship.

          5                 I don't think that that is in many

          6  ways the central issue. There are many other reasons

          7  why people don't want to be hassled to move their

          8  car after one hour or two hours, and Sunday gives us

          9  that opportunity.

         10                 Now, if there was a hue and cry out

         11  there all over the City for this, we would have

         12  heard it. We haven't heard it. At least I haven't

         13  heard it. In fact, it's interesting that Councilman

         14  Gentile has all these business associations that

         15  support the bill. I haven't heard from anybody,

         16  frankly, either way on it, except constituents who

         17  are very happy about this.

         18                 Now, if it is coming to a fore right

         19  now because we're in an election year, what does

         20  that say, Commissioner? And I would like you to hear

         21  this, Commissioner. I'm talking to you.

         22                 It's coming before us in the election

         23  season, and it's your contention that one of the

         24  reasons it's coming before us is because it has

         25  appeal politically.
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          2                 Well, what does that say? That says

          3  that the constituency of New York City, the voters,

          4  like this, they want it. Is that bad? That we're

          5  doing something because the voters want it? Even

          6  though some bureaucrats or some elected officials

          7  don't want it?

          8                 The fact is that with over 40

          9  sponsors, and I would like, Mr. Chairman, to add my

         10  name as a sponsor.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Forty-three

         12  sponsors.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Forty-three

         14  sponsors, who are the voice of the people. If we're

         15  anything, local Council people are the voice of the

         16  constituency.

         17                 So, Commissioner, the fact that we're

         18  doing it in a political season, perhaps for

         19  political benefit, you know, yay for democracy.

         20                 And as far as I'm concerned, that's

         21  not a negative, it's a positive.

         22                 I am sure that the Mayor, your

         23  appointer. I won't say your boss, the person who

         24  appointed you, the Mayor --

         25                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: He is my
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          2  boss.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Okay, well

          4  then your boss, when he goes out and he hears things

          5  from the people, he responds very often. Sometimes

          6  he doesn't to our discomforture, but often times he

          7  does. And he certainly, when he does something that

          8  he thinks people like, he promotes it, he has a

          9  press conference and so on, so he believes in

         10  satisfying the voters, and so do we, and that's why

         11  I'm sponsoring the bill.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Yes, I agree with

         13  Council Member Koppell with this in the sense that

         14  we did not legislate by referendum. And I know the

         15  Mayor has taken that position publicly on a number

         16  of issues, most recently yesterday. But I tend to

         17  think that if there was a public referendum on this

         18  issue, it would pass overwhelmingly, maybe over 90

         19  percent. I mean, that's to be determined. But just

         20  the fact that there are 43 sponsors now of this

         21  legislation and we are a legislative body, there is

         22  clearly strong support. And I know I have received a

         23  lot of complaints about parking meters in general,

         24  and I haven't received one letter or contact urging

         25  me or anybody in my office being urged to oppose
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          2  this legislation.

          3                 I understand that was the end of the

          4  question. I understand Commissioner Weinshall would

          5  like to make a statement. We have a lot of business

          6  to get through, and we have other businesses to

          7  consider, so I don't really want to prolong this

          8  hearing, but I will allow Commissioner Weinshall to

          9  make a final statement.

         10                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: I don't want

         11  to make a final statement, Mr. Chairman. I just want

         12  to answer Council Liu's assertion.

         13                 His assertion that --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: If you could do

         15  it briefly.

         16                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: I will try

         17  and do it briefly, Mr. Chairman.

         18                 His assertion that I have utter

         19  disdain for this body. I take issue with that,

         20  Councilman. That's your words, not mine. That's your

         21  sentiments, not mine.

         22                 Number two, I also am a little

         23  insulted by your characterization of the agency not

         24  responding to Council members.

         25                 I don't think there's any Council
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          2  member sitting on this panel who could say that I

          3  don't call them back, that my staff doesn't have to

          4  call them back. I see Council Member Lopez nodding

          5  her head.

          6                 I have to tell you, I take the job

          7  that public officials do very, very seriously, and I

          8  would dare say that probably I answer more elected

          9  officials' phone calls probably than any

         10  commissioner in this administration.

         11                 Number two, I will be happy to make

         12  available to the Council all of the requests that we

         13  have gotten from elected officials regarding Sunday

         14  meters.

         15                 For you to say that we have not

         16  responded, I think what you're saying is we haven't

         17  responded in the manner that you would like us to

         18  respond. We haven't given you the answer that you

         19  want, but we have responded.

         20                 So, Mr. Chairman, I'll be happy to

         21  give you the list of all the requests that we got,

         22  all the work that we've done, and then maybe you

         23  would like to disperse it among the members and

         24  share that information.

         25                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay. I would

          3  state for the record that my personal experience

          4  with you and your agency has been a good one. You've

          5  participated in a number of town hall meetings with

          6  me, and your office has been very responsive on most

          7  of the issues that we've requested. Obviously, you

          8  never get 100 percent. Certainly Commissioner Walsh

          9  has also been very responsive and we work very

         10  closely.

         11                 So, I certainly have no problem in

         12  not permitting you to respond for the reasons of

         13  expediting this hearing and moving on with the

         14  business of the day. But I'm trying to limit the

         15  amount of personal attack. I know this is a very

         16  emotional issue to some people, and I want to keep

         17  this to the fact that we do have the legislation

         18  before us. We do have 43 sponsors of it, and I'd

         19  like to move it along expeditiously.

         20                 I'm going to allow two more people to

         21  ask questions and make a statement because the day

         22  is -- well, I'm going to allow three members, in

         23  this order and that's it, now I'm going to cut off

         24  debate on this issue because we have three other

         25  issues to consider and that's in the order that they
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          2  contacted me.

          3                 First, Council Member Lopez, then

          4  Council Member Rivera, then Council Member Felder.

          5                 Council Member Lopez.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I was not going

          7  to say absolutely nothing in this hearing, but I

          8  feel compelled to make the necessary statement. It

          9  doesn't exist a single Commissioner in this

         10  Administration who have not performed absolutely in

         11  a way that is the way the Commissioner should be

         12  cooperating and working with all of us in this

         13  Council.

         14                 Now, in regard to Commissioner

         15  Weinshall, I have to say the following thing: To the

         16  risk of violating myself with all of the other

         17  commissioners, you have been the best in regard to

         18  me. And you respond to my office in regard to my

         19  community has always been on the money. And I

         20  believe that the statements said about your

         21  performance as a Commissioner are absolutely wrong,

         22  and to me, you can run my life if you want to. Thank

         23  you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you.

         25                 Majority Leader Rivera.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: Thank you very

          3  much, Chairman Weprin.

          4                 I just also want to echo the remarks

          5  of my colleague Council Member Lopez that this

          6  Administration and the agencies have been extremely

          7  responsive to my office's requests and concerns in

          8  the Bronx, and have done a phenomenal job, the

          9  Transportation agency, as well, as the SBS has on

         10  numerous occasions come out to visit in my

         11  neighborhood and of the neighborhoods in the Bronx,

         12  and I want to commend you in your fine work that you

         13  have done.

         14                 We may disagree on this particular

         15  issue, but I can name hundreds of other issues that

         16  we have worked very well with together, and I look

         17  forward to working with you in the future.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Council Member

         19  Felder.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Thank you very

         21  much, Chairman Weprin.

         22                 First of all, I have an internal

         23  administration document that says very clearly that

         24  Commissioner Walsh answers more calls than you,

         25  okay? Okay.
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          2                 Second of all, I just thought, all

          3  right, I'll say it again later, we'll see if more

          4  people laugh.

          5                 The second issue is, I was just

          6  wondering if a compromise would be, if the purpose

          7  is to keep the cause rolling, to have meters that

          8  don't charge any money and that they expire every

          9  three hours.

         10                 In other words, that you're able to

         11  be there for a certain amount of time for three

         12  hours and if people pray longer than that, we'll I'd

         13  like to speak to them.

         14                 But I'm not kidding around. In other

         15  words, to devise a system where you have meters that

         16  last a certain amount of time and that would --

         17  because even now with paid meters, a car under the

         18  law, you're not allowed to park there more than an

         19  hour, and the only way to make sure that they move

         20  is if you have enforcement agents chalk the tires

         21  and come back and do something like that. So, it's

         22  certainly possible.

         23                 So, if the purpose entirely, you

         24  know, really is to make sure that cars are moving, I

         25  think that we could come up with some kind of idea
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          2  that would not prevent people from parking there,

          3  but at the same time make sure that people move

          4  their cars so that doesn't hurt businesses.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you,

          6  Council member.

          7                 We're going to move for a vote on

          8  this bill, Intro. 669. Please call the roll.

          9                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Weprin.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Aye.

         11                 COUNCIL CLERK: Lopez.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Aye.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK: Perkins.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Aye.

         15                 COUNCIL CLERK: Provenzano.

         16                 (No response.)

         17                 COUNCIL CLERK: Quinn.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Aye.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK: Rivera.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: I vote aye.

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK: Brewer.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Aye. And I

         23  thank the Department of Transportation and also

         24  Small Business and certainly want to say that this

         25  is a complicated issue environmentally,
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          2  traffic-wise, but I would agree with Council Member

          3  Oliver Koppell that in my district it is extremely

          4  residential, the meters are even one which say in a

          5  residential area, you never get away from the

          6  residential, and in the terms of weighing the

          7  quality of life for individuals in a very stressful

          8  City, I come down on the side of this bill. I vote

          9  aye.

         10                 COUNCIL CLERK: DeBlasio.

         11                 (No response.)

         12                 COUNCIL CLERK: Fidler.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Pass.

         14                 COUNCIL CLERK: Gioia.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Yes.

         16                 COUNCIL CLERK: Jackson.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Aye.

         18                 COUNCIL CLERK: Koppell.

         19                 (No response.)

         20                 COUNCIL CLERK: McMahon.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Mr. Chairman,

         22  just briefly to explain my vote.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Yes. Go ahead.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Certainly,

         25  like all of my colleagues, I share the high respect
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          2  for the Commissioners who were here today and for

          3  the work that their agencies do.

          4                 But I have to say that I'm a little

          5  confused because in my district, I do have a

          6  Business Improvement District, and it goes down one

          7  of the main avenues and we do not have parking on

          8  Sunday on those meters now, and the leaders of that

          9  Business Improvement District would be vehemently

         10  opposed to having parking meter requirements on

         11  Sunday enacted there, so they are supportive of this

         12  legislation.

         13                 And, so, I just wanted to have that

         14  on the record, and to say that I vote aye.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you.

         16                 COUNCIL CLERK: Sears.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: No.

         18                 COUNCIL CLERK: Gallagher.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: Mr.

         20  Chairman, may I be temporarily excused to explain my

         21  vote?

         22                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Yes, you may.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: Well, I'm

         24  glad the Commissioner returns a lot of phone calls,

         25  but it doesn't take away from the fact the testimony
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          2  that was read into the record today was

          3  unnecessarily adversarial, and totally and

          4  completely insulting to this body.

          5                 I also want to point out that this

          6  Council and the Administration always talked about

          7  taxes, when the residential property taxes were

          8  increased 18.5 percent, that it was a temporary tax,

          9  or war time tax, and the same was said about Sunday

         10  meters, that it was to be temporary. Well, I know

         11  that it was never planned to be temporary, so I'm

         12  glad that the Council has stepped up and stepped

         13  forward and is passing this bill today, and I stand

         14  by the Council. I think it's the right thing to do.

         15                 So, I proudly vote aye. And if it is

         16  vetoed, I will look forward to overriding the veto.

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK: Oddo.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: May I be

         21  temporarily excused to explain my vote?

         22                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Yes, you may.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: I just want to

         24  say that I think there's probably a better bill out

         25  there, I think a better bill could be more narrowly
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          2  tailored, a better bill could have a sunset

          3  provision. But I think the point that Councilman Liu

          4  was making, I don't think he was making any personal

          5  attack on the Commissioner, is that you need to pass

          6  a bill like this and sort of negotiate backwards,

          7  because I don't think there was any willingness on

          8  the part of the other side.

          9                 So, while this bill, in my mind,

         10  might be a little bit over-broad, and might have,

         11  there might be a better bill out there, I don't

         12  think that the sponsors of this bill could have

         13  negotiated that bill. And you have to pass the more

         14  over-broad bill then negotiate backwards.

         15                 If Commissioner Weinshall had said

         16  this quite possibly could put pedestrians and

         17  motorists at risk, or an unintended consequence of

         18  this bill, or unintentionally this legislation, or I

         19  fear that what might happen, or my concerns are, I

         20  would have respected that.

         21                 But to have her come here and say

         22  affirmatively that the Council wants to put both

         23  pedestrians and motorists at risk is absolutely

         24  insulting.

         25                 When there was a tragic, tragic
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          2  occurrence on a mode of transportation in the City

          3  of New York that killed people that Mike McMahon and

          4  Andy Lanza and I represent, no one, no one in this

          5  body pointed a finger, and no one accused a

          6  Commissioner of wrongdoing.

          7                 And there were people in our home

          8  community that wanted heads on a stick. And we

          9  didn't give into that. No one in this body gave into

         10  that. And to have her come in here today and say

         11  affirmatively that we want to put pedestrians and

         12  motorists at risk is really insulting. Elected

         13  officials on all levels of government, let's see,

         14  there's municipal, there is state, and, oh, yes,

         15  there's federal elected officials, all of those

         16  folks have a job to do and they do it the best they

         17  can, how they see fit. And we don't question that.

         18                 I think, I just want to say to the

         19  sponsor, I want to say to Hiram, I thought today

         20  your comments to the Commissioner, you were at your

         21  best that I've seen you in the last three and a half

         22  years, and I commend you for your self control, and

         23  the rational way that you responded to what I

         24  thought was intentionally inflammatory testimony.

         25                 So, I vote yes.

                                                            66

          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2                 COUNCIL CLERK: Fidler.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Mr. Chairman,

          4  may I be briefly excused to explain my vote?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Yes, you may.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: I apologize

          7  for coming in late, especially since missing the

          8  opportunity to see Hiram Monserrate at his best in

          9  three and a half years is something really special.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: I announced,

         11  Council member, at the beginning of the hearing when

         12  we started at 11:00 that these are summer hours so

         13  we're starting on time.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Okay. I

         15  apologize, I had to be elsewhere.

         16                 I just want to say that when the idea

         17  of making parking meters operational on Sundays

         18  illegal was first voted, the Administration said

         19  that we couldn't afford it because of the revenue.

         20                 In the last week I've heard the

         21  argument that there would be no parking in front of

         22  our houses of worship because people would just park

         23  on Saturday night and pig out all the spots.

         24                 If that's the case, then I would just

         25  urge the Commissioner to post "No Parking" signs for
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          2  the early hours of Sunday morning, like 5:00 a.m.,

          3  and then that won't happen.

          4                 You know, perhaps this bill is

          5  overbroad, maybe we can negotiate backwards from it.

          6  But I think the Administration is scrambling just to

          7  say no, when they really recognize that the Council

          8  has an initiative here that makes sense and appeals

          9  to New Yorkers. People shouldn't have to put money

         10  in the meter to be able to go into the house of

         11  worship on a Sunday morning.

         12                 As a co-sponsor, I proudly vote aye.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK: Felder.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Did you vote

         15  already?

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Yes.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: No, I heard

         18  you speak. I didn't know if you voted.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: I voted, sir.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Okay.

         21                 May I be excused to explain my vote?

         22                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Yes, you may.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Thank you very

         24  much.

         25                 I just want to echo the comments of
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          2  Councilman Gallagher and Councilman Oddo about the

          3  remarks in the testimony. I think that I don't know

          4  -- forget it, I just don't know.

          5                 With that, I vote yes.

          6                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of 14 in the

          7  affirmative, one in the negative and no abstentions,

          8  Intro. 669 is adopted.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay, we have

         10  some other items. Does anybody have any questions on

         11  either the awning bill, the two budget modifications

         12  or the Land Use referral for the partial tax

         13  exemption in Council Member Recchia's district,

         14  which Council Member Recchia asked me to state for

         15  the record that he strongly supports.

         16                 Council Member Perkins.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: I just wanted

         18  to take the opportunity to vote aye on all.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay. Any other

         20  questions?

         21                 We're going to have a vote for

         22  everyone, I think.

         23                 Seeing no other questions, I'm going

         24  to move all the other items coupled.

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Weprin.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN: Aye on all.

          3                 COUNCIL CLERK: Lopez.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I just want to

          5  make a comment that today finally we bring in

          6  clarity to disabled people from inception equal to

          7  people who are seniors in this City, and it's about

          8  time that we done that. This Council should be proud

          9  that we moved swiftly after the bill was passed in

         10  the assembly and that finally the quality under the

         11  law for both group of people are going to be in

         12  place.

         13                 I vote aye on all.

         14                 COUNCIL CLERK: Provenzano.

         15                 (No response.)

         16                 COUNCIL CLERK: Quinn.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Aye.

         18                 COUNCIL CLERK: Rivera.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: I vote aye.

         20                 COUNCIL CLERK: Brewer.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Aye.

         22                 COUNCIL CLERK: Fidler.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Aye.

         24                 COUNCIL CLERK: Gioia.

         25                 (No response.)
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          2                 COUNCIL CLERK: Jackson.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Aye.

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK: Koppell.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Aye.

          6                 COUNCIL CLERK: McMahon.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Aye.

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK: Sears.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Aye.

         10                 COUNCIL CLERK: Gallagher.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: Aye.

         12                 COUNCIL CLERK: Oddo.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Yes.

         14                 COUNCIL CLERK: Felder.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Aye.

         16                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of 15 in the

         17  affirmative, zero in the negative and no

         18  abstentions, all items are adopted.

         19                 Council Members, please sign the

         20  Committee reports. Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Yes. Please sign

         22  the Committee reports.

         23                 Other than that, I'm going to keep

         24  the roll open for a reasonable period of time until

         25  the Stated Meeting starts.
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          2                 Other than that, we're adjourned.

          3                 COUNCIL CLERK: Intro. 669, Council

          4  Member DeBlasio.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER DeBLASIO: Aye.

          6                 COUNCIL CLERK: That vote stands at 15

          7  in the affirmative, one in the negative and no

          8  abstentions.

          9                 All other items, Council Member

         10  DeBlasio.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER DeBLASIO: Aye.

         12                 COUNCIL CLERK: These items stand at

         13  16 in the affirmative, zero in the negative and no

         14  abstentions.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 COUNCIL CLERK: Intro. 669. Council

         17  Member Gennaro.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Aye.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK: That vote finally

         20  stands at 16 in the affirmative, one in the

         21  negative, no abstentions.

         22                 Council Member Gennaro, the rest of

         23  the items on today's calendar.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Aye on all.

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK: The vote stands at 17
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          2  in the affirmative, zero in the negative and no

          3  abstentions.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 (Hearing concluded at 12:20 p.m.)
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          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 27th day of July 2005.
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          9            I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified Shorthand

         10  Reporter and a Notary Public in and for the State of

         11  New York, do hereby certify the aforesaid to be a

         12  true and accurate copy of the transcription of the

         13  audio tapes of this hearing.
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